
 
 

 

 

  

 
 
18 March 2019 

 
To:   The Members of the Cumbria and 

Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

CUMBRIA AND LANCASHIRE JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 
 
A meeting of the Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee will be held as 
follows:  
 
 Date: Tuesday 26 March 2019 

 Time: 2.00 pm 

 Place: Committee Room 2 - County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ 

 
Dawn Roberts 
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services  
 
NB: A PRE-MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE WILL BE HELD AT 1.30 PM IN 

COMMITTEE ROOM 2 TO WHICH ALL MEMBERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO 
ATTEND 

 
 
Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  David Stephens 
Direct Line: 07900698361 
Email: david.stephens@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats 
 

 

 

Serving the People of Cumbria 



MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Cumbria  (4) 
 

Lancashire  (4) 

Mr M Cassells 
Mrs V Rees 
Mr C Whiteside 
Mr M Wilson 

Mr C Edwards 
Mr S Morris 
Ms M Pattison 
Ms P Williamson 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 
 
Agenda and Reports 
 
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting. 
 
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –  
www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/  
 
Background Papers 
 
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday. 

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/


A G E N D A 
 
 
PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 

AND PUBLIC 
 
 

1   ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 

To appoint a Chair who will be a Cumbria Councillor representative for the ensuing year.  
The Chair shall be appointed by the Cumbria representatives serving on the Committee. 
 
 
2   ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

 
To appoint a Vice-Chair who will be a Lancashire Councillor representative for the 
ensuing year.  The Vice-Chair shall be appointed by the Lancashire representatives 
serving on the Committee. 
 
 
3   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 
 
4   MEMBERSHIP 

 
To note the membership of the Committee. 
 
 
5   DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

 
Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises 
 
1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit or gain.  
 
2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 

the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 

a beneficial interest) and the authority 
 
 (a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
 
 (b) Which has not been fully discharged.  



 
4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.   
 
5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 

the authority for a month or longer.   
 
6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  
 
 (a) The landlord is the authority; and 
 
 (b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest. 
 
7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 
 
 (a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 

the authority; and 
 
 (b) Either –  
 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered. 
 
Note 
 
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).  
 
 
6   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda. 
 
 
7   MINUTES 

 
To consider the minutes of the previous meeting held on 11 July 2016 (copy enclosed). 
 
 
 
 
 



8   BETTER CARE TOGETHER WORK PROGRAMME 
 

To consider a report by Morecambe Bay University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
(copy enclosed). 
 
 
9   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
To be agreed. 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee held at the County Offices, Kendal on 

Friday 13 February, 2015 at 3.30pm 

Present: 

Councillors  

Chris Henig Lancashire County Council 

Susie Charles Lancashire County Council 

Margret Brindle Lancashire County Council 

Nikki Penney Lancashire County Council 

Vivienne Rees South Lakeland District Council 

Peter Thornton South Lakeland District Council 

David Fletcher South Lakeland District Council 

Helen Wall Barrow Borough Council 

Stan Collins (substitute for Rod Wilson) Cumbria County Council 

  

Witnesses  

Andrew Bennett Chief Officer, Lancashire CCG 

Anthony Gardner Network Director (South),  Cumbria CCG 

George Nasmyth Deputy Medical Director. University Hospitals of 
Morecambe Bay 

Naomi Duggan Strategic Lead for Communications and 
Engagement, Better Care Together   

  

Officer Support  

David Stephens Scrutiny Officer, Cumbria County Council 

Wendy Broadley Scrutiny Officer, Lancashire County Council  

 

 

1. Apologies for absence 

Apologies for absence were received Mark Wilson and Rod Wilson, it was agreed that Cllr Henig 

would act as the chair in Rod’s absence Cllr Stan Collins provided an update on Rod’s condition and 

the Committee asked that their best wishes were passed on to him.  

2. Notes of last meeting  

The notes of the last meeting were agreed as a correct record with one amendment, Cllr Brindle will 

be the Chair of Lancashire CC not the Leader as stated.   

3. Member discussion  

Members discussed the proposals and discussed areas of concern that they would like to raise in the 

meeting in the following areas:- 

- Communication and liaison issues within local authorities to ensure greater co-ordination 

between HWBBs and scrutiny committees, and other elected members in considering the 

proposals. 

- How councils are involved in the BCT Board, represented through Corporate Directors. 

7

Agenda Item 7



 

 

- Co-commissioning of GP services, what model will be adopted in Cumbria and Lancashire 

- Competency of GPs – what quality assurance measures are being put in place? 

- Comments and questions on the BCT Strategy document from Cllr Mark Wilson were 

circulated to the committee these were also submitted directly to the BCT board in advance 

of the meeting. 

- Concerns expressed by members on the arrangements for outreach centres, what would be 

the specification of the access systems? 

- BCT Strategy needs to link to the Health & Well Being Strategies in Cumbria & Lancashire 

and other key plans 

- How will BCT be making their decisions about how and what to present to the public? 

- Concerns expressed about adjustments being made in advance of the consultation. 

- What figures do BCT use for population trends?, expectation that the population of South 

Lakeland will increase with new housing provision. Need to ensure that decisions are made 

on robust data. 

- Where is the detailed communications and engagement plan? 

Members were then joined by the witnesses. 

4. Better Care Together Strategy Update 

Naomi asked that the best wishes of the programme Board be passed onto Cllr Rod Wilson. 

Cllr Henig outlined the initial thoughts of the Committee to the representatives of the Programme 

Board, focusing on the communication plans over the next 18 months. 

Andrew Bennett emphasised that it was good to be able to speak to the Committee in the same 

week that the Strategy was put into the public arena. Feedback from NHS England had been positive, 

next step is to submit detailed business cases to potentially draw down additional funding. 

There is a period of reflection within the Board to assess what can be feasibly done over the next 12 

months with the resources available. Intent is to begin on some of the ‘out of hospital’ service 

models and provide updates on how these are progressing. 

Andrew referred to the NHS ‘5 year forward view’. A submission has been made putting forward the 

Morecambe Bay area as one where the ways of working expressed in the 5 year view could be 

tested, feedback was anticipated in March.  

Naomi circulated an ‘Engagement – Plan on a Page’. Cllr Henig asked for clarification on ‘quick wins’. 

Naomi provided the Millom Health Alliance as an example of a quick win, Anthony expanded on this 

outlining further examples ‘care navigators’ etc. These were small scale but tests in preparation for 

additional funds being available. Members emphasised the importance of understanding what the 

dates/timescales and milestones of the programme would be. Andrew committed to liaising with 

the Scrutiny Officers to provide clear timings and milestones and take advice on the appropriate role 

for Scrutiny Committees i.e. briefing notes, full meetings. 

There was a discussion on ‘summer pressures’ due to the increased demand of tourist numbers and 

their use of hospital services. George clarified that there was an increase in demand during holiday 

periods and this was factored in to service planning. 

8



 

 

It was clarified to members that the Strategy was intended to be accessible but not in any way a 

precursor to a consultation document. 

George expanded on the reasons behind ‘double running’ services when changes are made to 

ensure clinical safety, this is obviously more resource intensive, any changes also have to be 

demonstrated to the clinical senate to ensure that the appropriate standards of care are maintained. 

Question asked by Cllr Stan Collins on infectious disease protocols and any additional work in 

Morecambe Bay due to the larger number of foreign visitors. It was clarified that national protocols 

were applied, it was suggested that Local Authority Emergency Planning Teams be added to the list 

of consultees, and this was agreed by the representatives of the Board. 

Cllr Peter Thornton asked how GPs were going to be brought along with the objectives and 

aspirations of the programme. Anthony responded that this was not a blanket approach, differing 

level of willingness and appetite across the area. Federations will enable economies of scale which 

will act as an incentive to GP practices. Federations can also better represent the practices when 

liaising with BCT and other bodies. 

Recruitment issues raised by Cllr Henig, George informed the Committee that there is significant 

evidence that Health professionals tend to stay in the area that they train. Hence why the additional 

places provided in Lancaster and University of Cumbria are so important in resolving this. 

Cllr Brindle asked how the increasing use of agency nursing staff could be reduced. George 

responded that the way organisations needed to move away from base lining their staffing levels at 

a minimum but building in training and development time more effectively and possibly 

commissioning their own nurse training. 

Cllr Stan Collins enquired how mental Health Services were being considered. Anthony responded 

that there was still a lot of work to be done to establish parity of esteem. Work underway in Cumbria 

on developing a Joint Mental Health Strategy. 

Cllr Henig asked about changes to CCG funding and co-commissioning. Andrew clarified that the 10% 

reduction was in their running costs rather than their overall budget, this equated to 300k for the 

LCCGs and 1m for CCCG. LCCGs are going for level 2 co-commissioning and CCCG are going for level1. 

If and when there are proposals around elective surgery being carried out at specialist centres 

outside of the trust area, these will be made explicitly in the consultation with early engagement 

with the Committee. 

Conclusion:- 

The BCT team committed to undergo continuing discussion with the Committee, next step would be 

a meeting with the Scrutiny Support Officers for both Lancashire and Cumbria to review timescales 

and assess where it was appropriate to engage the Committee. 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 
 

 

BAY HEALTH AND CARE PARTNERS UPDATE 
Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting  

 

Date of Meeting 26 March 2018 

Report Title BHCP update to Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Prepared by and 
contact details 

Karen Kyle – System Programme Director – Bay Health & Care 
Partners 

Status of Report 
Public Private Internal  

☐ ☒ ☐ 

  

Purpose of Report For Decision For Approval For Information  

☐ ☐ ☒ 

Summary 

Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committees created a 
Joint Committee to consider the Better Care Together (BCT) 
Programme of work. Bay Health and Care Partners (BHCP) 
Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) aims to work closely with the 
Joint OSC to review the BCT Work Programme and any potential 
service changes planned through 2019 and beyond. 
 
The programmes of work that Bay Health and Care partners are 
working on currently are outlined within appendix 1 and set the 
programme of work for 2019/20. 
 
The document also highlights the potential impact of the 
Lancashire County Council budget cuts which has the potential to 
impact detrimentally on health and care services within 
Morecambe Bay and has the potential to impact on the health and 
well-being agenda which is a core element of the Population 
Health agenda locally.  
 

Recommendation 

The Joint OSC is asked to:  
 
1) Note the contents of this paper. 

 

 Works closely with BHCP to assist create an engagement 
approach that best meets the needs of our communities 
and neighbourhoods. 

 Creates an annual schedule of meetings where we can 
keep the Joint Committee appraised of progress with each 
of the work streams 

 Adds it support to our national requests for further capital 
support to transform an ageing estate. 

 Provides early guidance on its views of substantial change 
for the programmes of work so that we can we prepare in 
good time for any possible consultation. 

 
2) Comment on the service proposals outlined in appendix 1. 

 

11

Agenda Item 8



 
 

 

 
 

 

Supports mitigation 
of ICP Assurance 
Framework Risk 
(mark with X) 

Yes (if yes please record AF reference no. 
below) 

No  

  

BHCP System 
Objectives 
supported by this 
paper 
(mark with X) 

  Yes No 

Better Health – improve population health and 
wellbeing and reduce health inequalities 

Y  

Better Care – improve individual outcomes, quality 
and experience of care 

Y  

Delivered Sustainably – we will create an 
environment for motivated, happy staff and achieve 
our control total 

Y  

Committees/Groups 
where paper 
previously 
presented 

N/A 

 
Introduction: 
 
The Better Care Together programme of work is now 5 years old and we have seen a number 
of successful improvements and outcomes for the people of the Morecambe Bay area. Not 
least:- 
 

 Working with community based optometrists to provide 9,000 Ophthalmology 
appointments in the community, often at a town centre optician, rather than as a hospital 
outpatient  
 

 Advice and Guidance – which has seen GPs seeking advice via an “electronic 
conversation” with hospital specialists – ensuring that the patient only has to become a 
hospital outpatient where it is necessary  
 

 Patient Initiated Follow Ups – a new scheme meaning regular follow up appointments are 
ended, where it’s appropriate to do so, for patients with long term conditions (like 
rheumatism) but giving them swift access to advice if they experience flare ups  
 

 iMSK – where people are seen in community clinics and offered advice rather than being 
referred straight to a hospital orthopaedic surgeon.  
 

At the same time we have also introduced new models of working such as through the creation 
of the Integration of Care Communities (ICCs) which have been created to help bring together 
local health and care organisations. The focus of the ICCs is to ensure that local people are 
supported to improve their own health and wellbeing, and that when people are ill or need 
support, they receive the best possible joined up care. 
 
ICCs work across organisations in a defined geographical area to improve the overall health 
and wellbeing of local people by: 
 

1. Joining up health and care services 
2. Providing more care out of hospital 
3. Supporting people to manage their own health 

12



 
 

 

 
 

 

Health and social care professionals, GPs, the voluntary sector and the community are working 
as one team in each ICC to improve the health and wellbeing of local people. They are focusing 
on helping people to manage long term health conditions, improve access to information about 
healthier lifestyles and providing more care out of hospital so people can stay as well and 
independent as possible. They also focus on helping people to stay well and working with local 
communities, empowering them to take a more active role in their health and wellbeing. By 
understanding the challenges that each area faces, and using the knowledge and experience of 
service users, the community can work together with health and care organisations to improve 
their health and wellbeing. 
 
Bay Health and Care Partners 
 
Bay Health and Care Partners (BHCP) were established in 2017 as the collective name for 
delivering Better Care Together to improve the delivery and outcomes of health and care for our 
communities. This is the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) for Morecambe Bay. 
 
Bay Health and Care Partners developed a shared plan for our population called ‘Better Care 
Together’. It set out a bold ambition for the future of the local NHS and care services. Our 
ambition was to make integrated care a reality for the communities of North Lancashire and 
South Cumbria. This strategy identified many of the opportunities set out at the same time by 
national leaders in the NHS Five Year Forward View and more recently the NHS Long Term 
Plan.  
 
Integrated care means taking a shared view of the care someone needs, rather than dealing 
with problems or conditions separately; it means looking at the health and wellbeing of whole 
communities rather than only the ‘sick’ people within them. Increasingly communities wish to 
take the initiative for their own health and wellbeing rather than becoming dependent on 
overstretched health and care services. 
 
BHCP has already made significant progress and tackled some difficult issues together. Local 
doctors and care professionals from partner organisations have begun to implement the new 
models of care set out in Better Care Together. BHCP has used its vanguard status to establish 
Integrated Care Communities which will provide more joined up NHS and social care services 
closer to people’s homes. Senior clinical and organisational leaders have worked closely 
together over a sustained period of time, improving the quality of clinical services and taking 
action to develop the workforce.  
 
BHCP aims to use the best evidence available so that the care offering is proactive rather than 
reactive and is effective for those receiving it. Partners want to work as one team without walls, 
looking at ways to address the variation in health outcomes and inequalities across the Bay 
area. The intention is also to be as cost-effective as possible and to reduce duplication to make 
the value of the ‘Morecambe Bay pound’ go further. This will enable the development of 
services that are better placed to meet people’s health and care needs, now and in future. 
 
The fact that health and local authority organisations are pulling together to do something about 
this is a spur to think and work very differently; and this creates an opportunity to radically 
improve the services and care provided. 
  

13



 
 

 

 
 

 

 
The key deliverables for BHCP area for the next 5 years are to:  
 

 Improve individual and population health, promoting primary, preventative and self-care 
and reducing the requirement for more costly care.  This will require a strong public 
health and health promotion component to be effective in this area; 

 Improve the quality, safety and effectiveness of care provision thus improving clinical 
outcomes; 

 Enhance people’s experience of care by providing transformed and integrated pathways 
of care with minimal hand offs between different parts of the system; and 

 Make substantial progress towards returning the system to financial balance. 
 
These key deliverables will be achieved through:  
 

 Agreed system goals and targets for which all system partners are accountable. These 
include targeted reductions in non-elective admissions and outpatient follow up 
appointments, reduced 
delayed transfers of care, fewer beds and outpatient clinics; 

 A system-wide governance mechanism which brings together providers and 
commissioners, with clear decision-making rights, including the ability to shift resources; 

 An agreed set of system-wide work programmes that support delivery of the system 
goals; 

 Continued implementation of our new Integrated Care Communities models based on 
redesigning our primary and community care system and enabling us to shift resources, 
capacity and capability; 

 A system-wide financial control total that enables the leadership to manage the whole 
NHS budget for the population that it serves. Further opportunities will be identified to 
combine NHS and local authority resources, building on established arrangements such 
as the Better Care Fund; 

 Financial incentives linked to system-wide goals that operate across providers and 
commissioners; and 

 A system-wide integrated care record which enables the partners to ensure “knowledge 
follows the patient/person” as they receive care in our services. 

 
BCT was originally constructed to be bold address the challenges the local Health & care 
system was facing in Morecambe Bay, namely providing safe sustainable Health & care within 
the financial resources available to us. This approach was formally recognised by becoming one 
of the first wave of NHS England Vanguards. Despite the good progress made to date, we 
haven’t gone as fast or as wide as we would have liked to make more of a positive impact for 
our communities. We are now in the process of reviewing Better Care Together to create a new 
iteration, particularly in light of the NHS 10 year plan, we are looking carefully at what’s worked 
well, what could have been better and what else we now need to consider. We are referring to 
this work as BCT 2.0. 
 
  

14



 
 

 

 
 

 

BCT 2.0 engagement and involvement 
 
An initial workshop has been held to review key elements of BCT and to consider the priorities 
for the next iteration.  The workshop largely consisted of BHCP representatives including the 
County Councils and voluntary sector and Healthwatch. However we remain committed to 
involving the public and in April/May we will be sharing and discussing this initial work with the 
public asking them to comment and help us to shape the construct and direction of the strategy. 
We have created check points throughout the year where we will ‘check back in’ with the public 
for their views. We will also include other partners such as Joint Scrutiny members in these 
invites. 
 
Engagement and Communication 
 
When we first launched Better Care Together we initiated a large programme of engagement 
which involved thousands of local people commenting on their experience of local healthcare 
and their views about travelling for specialist treatment.  This feedback directly shaped the 
content and thinking for the Strategy.  We are now embarking on a different approach, we want 
to truly embed the public into our work and to do so we are adopting the Citizen’s Panel 
approach – which we are naming the BHCP Assembly. 
 
Engagement needs to be a continuum with the public and patients, and the workforce alike, not 
one off programmes of work, it is inefficient to operate in this way and likely to be ineffective, it 
is much more efficient and sensible to have programmes of work which constantly engage and 
involve the public; this team have a clear aim of: 
 

 Creating a large-scale representative coalition with the public, ensuring as near ‘real-

time’ feedback and intelligence on neighbourhood opinions and feelings regarding health 

and care as possible. 

 Supporting and training members of our workforce on how to engage and involve the 

public in planning service development 

 Creating a model for service change and development engagement and involvement 

ensuring there is a robust portfolio of evidence to demonstrate this involvement. 

The Bay Health and Care Partners Assembly will be created, with the aim of building on the 
already strong public contacts.  Creating a willing coalition to work with us, truly representing all 
the communities we serve. Together with the intention of creating a single approach. The 
assembly will also develop and embed neighbourhood ‘ambassadors/champions’ you will have 
a good informed knowledge base of local health and care developments -via support and 
training. 
 
BHCP will take a partnership approach to this work and have had early positive discussions with 
both the CVS and Health Watch. 
 
BHCP recognises that it also needs to communicate as one, not several partner voices saying 
the same thing in different ways or different messages.  It only confuses people, to aid this we 
are working to bring together UHMBT and MB CCG Communications and engagement teams to 
create a ‘central’ joined up team who will create and coordinate messages on behalf of BHCP. 
 
  

15



 
 

 

 
 

 

Recommendations 
 
We ask that the Joint Committee:- 
 

 Works closely with BHCP to assist create an engagement approach that best meets the 
needs of our communities and neighbourhoods. 

 Creates an annual schedule of meetings where we can keep the Joint Committee 
appraised of progress with each of the work streams 

 Adds it support to our national requests for further capital support to transform an ageing 
estate. 

 Provides early guidance on its views of substantial change for the programmes of work 
so that we can we prepare in good time for any possible consultation. 

 
 
 

16



No Project Title Summary of Possible changes Why is it being considered Public Patient involvement taking place? Current Location Any consideration to move it EIAs completed
Plans impacted by
the merger in North

Cumbria (Y/N)

Plans aligned to
both ICS’s in

Lancashire and
South Cumbria and
North Cumbria (Y/N)

Will Local Authority
Budget cuts impact

on the project ?

Target date of
change

1 Integrated iMSK
service

Extended scope physiotherapy practitioners will triage all T&O and iMSK using eRS Referral Assessment Service (RAS) to the Trust and will provide enhanced physio interventions,
including direct access to diagnostics, MDTs with GPsWSI, consultants, pain specialists and IAPT workers etc.
•  It is predicted that by establishing a Bay wide iMSK service model, 50% of referrals to T&O could be treated in iMSK.  This is estimated as 4800 referrals that could be seen in iMSK.
• The Bay wide iMSK services will operate within an MSK network, including First Contact Physios aligned to practices and ICCs in line with NHS England Elective Care High Impact
Interventions (PDSA pilots in Q£/4 18/19) and community physios.
•  Integration of Community services has become more effective following transfer of community services from Cumbria Partnership Trust (April 2018);  and Blackpool Teaching Hospitals
to BH&CPs on October 1st 2018. This has enabled a truly integrated service to be delivered across the Bay.
•  With the introduction of eRS RAS in November 2018, iMSK and T&O are able to establish a 'single point of access' for referrals.  This will also be enhanced by the iMSK service
operating on EMIS Community.

Moving care closer to home in line with the BCT strategy Cross Bay in Acute OPD clinics

Changes are under way.  A wider
roll out of First Contact Practitioners
is expected Bay Wide post PDSA
work which commenced in 2018

EIA completed, it is not believed at this time, that
in developing the services any group is being
affected unethically or has a disproportionate
impact on said groups.  Every effort is being

made to ensure that the MSK and Pain
Management projects remain inclusive and that

data used is current and is seen as ‘national
best practice’. 

No No
Already commenced,
anticipated roll out from
April 2019

2 Redesign of
Respiratory Services

Work on the respiratory model centres on three key elements, within an overall network approach which brings together GPs, respiratory nurses and practices nurses, consultants and
patients:

1. The establishment of MDT meeting within our ICCs, with a lead clinician in each ICC and outreach consultant support. ICC teams are able to discuss complex cases with specialist
colleagues, hospital teams are able to highlight high-risk patients and discuss the wider patient context with the ICC teams, and all professionals are able to work closer together. A new
model of care based on agreed standards together with a consistent approach to care planning and case management helps to remove unwarranted variation in clinical practice. Early roll
out of the approach in Lancashire North and Barrow Town ICCs has led to a 60% reduction in outpatient referrals from GPs (and associated reductions in follow ups). Learning from the
early adopters will allow fine tuning of the model and roll out to the rest of South Cumbria as investment resources allow.

1. In summary, the proposed implementation of the MBRN service components are:

a. A phased roll out of additional general practice respiratory clinics and integrated MDTs throughout North Lancashire and South Cumbria from summer 2019 to 2020

2. At present, there are insufficient rapid response community resources to support patients with respiratory exacerbations which often leads to unnecessary A&E attendances and non-
elective hospital admissions. Clinical assessments indicate that potentially up to 85% of exacerbations could be managed in the patient’s own home led by a ‘hospital at home’ style rapid
response community service linked into the GP and ICC respiratory teams. A pilot  within  Lancashire North  demonstrated that  a prudent 50% reduction in non-elective admissions
against the 2017/18 baseline year could be realised, over the 5 years of the plan.

a. In summary this would be an expansion of rapid response services to avoid admission and speed up discharge throughout  North Lancashire and South Cumbria.

3. Pulmonary rehabilitation (PR). The National COPD Audit Programme Report (2017) demonstrates that patients who complete a course of PR are a 37% less likely to be admitted to
hospital than those who do not complete a course of PR, and for those who are admitted, the mean number of bed days for those who undertake PR is half of those who don’t. At present
there is insufficient PR capacity so we will look to expand PR to better meet patient need.

a. In summary this would be an expansion of pulmonary rehabilitation services

Moving care closer to home in line with the BCT strategy -
improving care for patients with respiratory conditions to meet
national guidelines and in line with the NHS Long Term Plan

Cross Bay in Acute OPD clinics No Yes TBC

Pilot  commenced,
anticipated roll out from
April 2019( subject to
resources)

3 Frailty Services

Morecambe Bay has areas of its demographics with very high percentages of elderly frail residents, but also has areas of deprivation with a younger but equally as frail population.  Of that
population 20.4% are over 65 yrs. and of those 27% are over 80 yrs.   In common with the rest of the country over 65’s utilise a disproportion amount of resource and whilst this is
appropriate, using our population health approach we need to ensure that services are focused on the need of the population and also as cost effective as possible.

Progress to date:
The following pathways have now been embedded into the Integrated Care Communities for delivery:
• Development of a Frailty Pathway for the Bay.
• Development of risk stratification for patients on an ICC basis; support for those who are severely frail, care planning for those who are moderately frail and signposting to support for
those who are mildly frail.
• Multi-disciplinary team ‘meeting’ processes for patients who professionals have concerns about, particularly related to risk of admission or other crisis.
The project has now moved to phase 2 which has the following elements:
• Falls and Fractured Neck of Femur
• Community Beds - Step up/ step down
• Care Home Support

Moving care closer to home in line with the BCT strategy.
Supporting the frail population in their own homes.

Cross Bay in ICCs
Reduction in emergency
referrals to A&E and
admissions

Although every effort is being made to
communicate changes it is recognised that

there is more to do as the projects progress. 
Communicating to stakeholders in BHCP is
relatively easy in the way that stakeholders

groups have been set up such as MSK Steering
Group, Intranet etc.  This is less easy when

communicating with patients due to less
opportunities and more governance around

how we communicate with patients.  This does
not prevent us from communicating with

patients but requires more planning as part of
the process to ensure that the language used

reflect the target audience.

No Lancashire & South
Cumbria - Y Possible

Anticipated pathway
development of phase
2 from April 2019

Frailty services - Care
Home support

This part of the project will improve the care provided in care homes by:
• Reduce likelihood of temporary or permanent closure, by providing on-going support.
• Improve outcomes by improving the liaison between GP practices / Integrated Care Communities and then care homes within the geographical area; thus increasing access to care and
potentially reducing pressure on primary care.
• Improve the medicines management, ensuring patients receive appropriate medications.

A model of care home support has been developed, links are being made between ICCs and Care Homes and medication reviews processes are also being commenced.

Supporting people in their own homes and supporting the
care home sector Primary Care Not as yet No Yes Possible

Anticipated
development of phase
2 from April 2019

4 Diabetes Workstream

Morecambe Bay has over 20,000 patients who are diabetic and the numbers are increasing year on year.  The Right Care data tells us that we do not serve them well in the following
areas:
As a result both our analysis of Right Care data and feedback from patients the Diabetes Workstream commenced in January 2018 as a key component of the BHCP 3 Year Delivery
Plan.  Phase one included:
• Current state mapping of services in both parts of the Bay for both types of diabetes and particularly focusing on foot care the higher rates of amputations.
• A system wide stakeholder event in March which included representation from Primary and Secondary Care, Community Services, CCG, Public Health and Service Users to define the
scope of redesigning Diabetes services across the bay.
• A diabetes model has been developed with input from Primary Care , Secondary Care and Community teams in Morecambe Bay
The Programme of work has moved to  Phase 2 which includes the following areas of work:
• Implementing Patient Initiated Follow-Ups for those attending secondary care.
• Pathway development for Pre-diabetes, Type1 and Type 2
• Foot Care pathway improvements

Moving care closer to home in line with the BCT strategy Yes

Reduction in outpatient activity
new and follow ups and
patients supported within local
communities. Supporting
improvement in the
management of diabetic foot
care and reduction in diabetic
amputations

No Not yet Possible
Anticipated pathway
development from April
2019

5 Ophthalmology service
consolidation

Running services across two, three, four or five sites can produce duplication and is not always the most efficient way of delivering care and is not always providing the best experience for
patients.  The Trust is therefore exploring the consolidation of a number of its services.
The Better Care Together Clinical Strategy has firm stakes in the ground around provision of A&E and non-elective care together with Maternity services on our two acute sites thus this
consolidation is mostly around a number of areas of elective care e.g. Ophthalmology.
Currently all Ophthalmology services are delivered across all sites with the exception of AMD which is successfully delivered at Westmoreland General Hospital only.  BHCP are looking at
a proposal for Ophthalmology  the development of a Centre of Excellence for Cataract Care at Westmorland General Hospital.    Evidence from other Trusts demonstrates that single site
Centres of Excellence offer both improved patient experience and increased productivity.

Evidence from other Trusts demonstrates that single site
Centres of Excellence offer both improved patient experience
and increased productivity.

Yes
Cross Bay in Acute OPD clinics
and centralising services on
one site

As part of 19/20 CIP plans
Ophthalmology are conducting a full
review of the cataract service to
ensure it meets of patients and
maximises productivity.

Not as yet No Yes No
Options are being
considered and impact
explored in 2019

6 Community Beds - Step
up/ step down

A bed modelling review is being proposed on ‘step up’ and ‘step down’ beds in Abbey View located on the site of Furness General Hospital (FGH) and Langdales located
within Westmorland General Hospital (WGH). The review looks at the number of beds, type of service and whether the 'step up/ down' function could be delivered more
effectively closer to/ within peoples own homes.

The review was initiated as a result of the service review of
Abbey View in 2016 and the North West Utilisation
Management (NWUM) report from June 2017. The latter
highlighting issues with the utilisation of Abbey View and the
lack of a rehabilitation focused environment on the Langdale
wards.
Alongside these reports, an initial meeting to scope
Domiciliary Care options in South Cumbria took place
30/8/18 with a purpose to develop a vision for how services
may look going forward and then how that may be achieved.
The Scoping Group led by Paul Latimer (Cumbria County
Council) agreed that it would be good to develop a shared
vision for discussion.

To date, there have been two staff engagement
sessions with ward staff from Abbey View and
Langdale along with wider stakeholders from
UHMBT Community Services including Allied
Health Professionals, Acute and Primary Care,
Morecambe Bay CCG and Cumbria County
Council.

A Patient/ Public/ Staff engagement plan is in
development that will incorporate a second stage
Equality Impact Assessment to fully identify all
groups to engage/consult with on the draft options.
The plan will incorporate the capturing of patient
stories on current provision and engagement with
Patients and Public on the draft options.

Abbey View, FGH and
Langdales WGH

Dependent on Patient/ Public/ Staff/
stakeholder engagement, 'step up/
down' function may be delivered
more effectively closer to/ within
peoples own homes.

Not as yet No Yes Possible

TBC - Patient/ Public/
Staff/ stakeholder
engagement required
on draft options prior to
decision making/
timescales set

7 ENT No plans to change service delivery.  Undertaking DNA audit.

17



8 Mental Health To  develop a Bay-wide model of care and delivery arrangements in line with emerging Lancashire and South Cumbria interim mental health strategy.

The CCG, together with North Cumbria CCG, issued
commissioning intentions to Cumbria Partnership NHS FT
(CPFT) in January 2018 on the future of Countywide
services, focussing on adult mental health, CAMHS and
learning disabilities. The drivers of this were the need to
improve quality, clinical and financial sustainability, and
ensure consistent care models and standards across the Bay
in line with the ICS models of care.

In South Cumbria, the commissioning intentions were for
services to be delivered by a single Trust across the whole of
the Morecambe Bay system, with obvious advantages to the
service being provided by an existing partner in the Bay
Health and Care Partnership, meaning Lancashire Care NHS
Foundation Trust (LCFT), given the need to work to a
common care model across the ICS footprint. The LCFT
Board has signalled agreement to a transfer of service,
subject to appropriate due diligence and business cases.

Yes Led by the ICS Cross Bay community TBC Yes Yes Oct-19

9 Children's Services
Transfer

The Integrated Children’s Community Services Project began in May 2019 with the agreement between Blackpool Teaching Hospitals and UHMBT to transfer the following North
Lancashire Children’s services to UHMB along with their 43 employees:
• Targeted Services –Therapy Services (0-19)
• Targeted Services - Nursing (0-19)
• Targeted Services – Children’s Hearing Services
• Bleasdale School (Residential Special School) Health Provision (0-19)
• Speech and Language Therapy
• Community Paediatrics Clinic Support
• Paediatric Liaison Services
These services successfully transferred to UHMBT on 01/10/19 and now predominately sit within UHMBTs Women and Children’s Care Group.

In 2019/20 Financial year - Quarter 1, a further 7 employees Blackpool Teaching Hospitals Employees will transfer to UHMBT. These staff will complete the Speech and Language
Therapy team and bring an additional Occupational Therapy team. The transferring staff currently fulfil a Lancashire County Council Contract and will continue to do some once they have
transferred to UHMBT.
Further commissioning intentions have been put forward to transfer the following CPFT South Cumbrian Children's Services to UHMBT:
• Community Children's Nursing (0-19)
• Speech and Language Therapy
• Occupational Therapy
• Community Paediatricians
• Audiology Service

These services have approximately 50 staff at present and the expected transfer date to UHMBT is 2019/20 Financial year - Quarter 3 or 4. Due diligence work on this transfer will begin
once CPFT and UHMBT boards have ratified commissioning intentions via board approval of the transfer.
Once these services have transferred from CPFT, the majority of the South Cumbria and North Lancashire Children’s Community Services will all work for the same organisation, UHMBT.
This is a critical factor in enabling the future transformational changes needed to achieve the BCT aspiration of a fully integrated, accountable and equitable care system for Children’s
services across Morecambe Bay. With both Community and Acute Children’s Services sitting under UHMBT, it enables better use of resources across the teams and allows for future
multi-disciplinary team working, sharing skills and expertise between Acute and Community staff to allow for more care to be delivered outside of a hospital setting.

Simplifying the local health and care service, ensuring greater
consistency of care and reducing the growth in demand in
line with BCT strategy

Not at this stage. The current stage of the project is
to transfer Children's Services like for like from BTH
& CPFT into UHMBT.
Future transformational changes within the services
once all under UHMBT will have patient
involvement/engagement

Cross Bay - Community

At present, the transfer of CPFT
Children's services is the
commissioning intention, the transfer
decision has not yet been ratified by
CPFT & UHMBT boards. The
originally muted transfer date was
01/10/19 however UHMBT will likely
request to move this to an as yet
unconfirmed later date (though most
likely to be in the same financial
year)

BTH SALT & OT LCC
staff transfer - 2019/20
financial year, quarter 1

CPFT Children's
Community Services -
TBC. Estimate 2019/20
financial year, quarter 3
or 4.

10 Acquired Brain Injury
(ABI) service MBCCG wish to transfer ABI services from Blackpool and South Cumbria providers, into Morecambe Bay to continue their plans for system integration in line with the BCT Strategy. Integration of community services into the Bay in line with the

BCT strategy.
Not at this stage as the services will remain in the
Bay, but will be delivered by one provider Cross Bay Community No No TBC - potentially in

2019/20

11 WGH Helme Chase
(Maternity Services) No plans to change service delivery.  Ongoing monitoring and assessment as appropriate

12
Impact of Lancashire
County Council budget
cuts

Services to be reduced which will impact on local health care: Lancashire Health and Well Being Service; Integrated Home Improvement Service; substance Misuse Service; Stop
Smoking Service . The BHCP Leadership team have considered the proposals and the initial review of these cuts are : SC609 Health Improvement Services – the proposal to reduce
service offer in this area is very likely to increase cost pressures in the longer term.  This proposal is at odds with the prevailing strategy for improving population health to drive sustainability
of health and social care services.  Any reduction in service provision for substance misuse is likely to result in immediate increase in pressures on emergency and community pathways
and the reduction in support for smoking cessation and weight management support will have a long term health impact on individuals and result in corresponding increased impact on
health and social care services.
• SC610 Lancashire Wellbeing Service – the proposal to cease the Lancashire Wellbeing Service will have a significant impact on the development of local neighbourhoods and is counter
to the current strategy of building on our Integrated Care Communities (ICCs) to facilitate health and care delivery closer to home.  The NHS Long Term Plan provides an opportunity to
explore options for local collaborative working to bring services together as part of the creation of Primary Care Networks.

• SC611 Home Improvement Services – the proposal to reduce funding in this area is likely to have a disproportionate impact on the sustainability of local home improvement agencies.
There will be a significant impact on the health of individuals, e.g. there is potential for more falls and loss of independence which in turn will increase the burden on health and care
services.
• SC119 Special educational needs and disability service – the proposal to cease the Lancashire Breaktime service will have a detrimental impact on the health and wellbeing of children
and their parents/carers with the potential of having longer term impacts on the wider health and social care system.

No detailed impact assessments have been undertaken on
the impacts on health services on these budget cuts. North Lancashire No No No Yes

13 Lancashire & South
Cumbria Integrated
Care Systrm - ICS led
programmes of work

The priorities for the Acute and Specialised Services portfolio were agreed by Provider CEOs, AOs and the ICS leadership team at the beginning of 2018, and are:
• Stroke
• Diagnostics
• Vascular
• Head and Neck
• Urology Cancer – sits with Cancer Alliance
• Paediatric HDU – sits with Paediatric Programme and Children/YP and Maternity programmes

Other programmes of work include: Adult  Mental Health; Children and Young Peoples Mental Health and Well-being; Digital Transformation

The priorities for the Acute and Specialised Services portfolio
were agreed by Provider CEOs, AOs and the ICS leadership
team at the beginning of 2018

Public engagement and involvement for all ICS led
programmes is being led by the ICS team.

Across Lancashire Yes Yes

18


	Agenda
	7 Minutes
	8 Better Care Together Work Programme
	BHCP Update Appendix


